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3319 Maguire Boulevard, Suite 232
 Michael W. ole 
Orlando FL 32803-3767 Secretary 

April 29, 2008 

ELECTRONIC MAIL 
tdepaola@aercrecycling.com 

Ms. Tracy DePaola OCD-HW-E-08-125 
AERC Recycling Solutions 
4317-J Fortune Place 
West Melbourne, FL 32904 

Brevard County - HW 
AERC Recycling Solutions FLD984262782 
Executed Long Form Consent Order 

Dear Ms. DePaola: 

Enclosed is a copy of your Long Form Consent Order, executed April 28, 2008, for settlement 
of OGC Case No. 07-2193. Please note that all "effective" dates mentioned in the Order are as 
of the executed date. The Consent Order outlines actions that have been or remain to be 
completed in order to bring your facility into compliance. 

If you are unable to meet any of the above requirements within the time period please notify 
DEP in writing prior to the deadline and include an alternate plan to accomplish the corrective 
actions. 

If you have any questions regarding this Order, please contact me at (407) 893-3323. 

Sincerely, 

Danielle Bentzen 
Environmental Specialist 

Enclosure: Executed Consent Order 



Charlie Crist 
Governor 

Jeff Kottkall1p 

Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection 

Lt. Governor 
Central District 

3319 Maguire Boulevard, Suite 232 Michael W. Sole 
Orlando FL 32803-3767 SecretalY 

April 3, 2008 

EMAIL ADDRESS 
tdepaola@aercrecycling.com 

Ms. Tracy DePaola OCD-HW-E-08-088 
AERC Recycling Solutions 
4317-J Fortune Place 
West Melbourne, FL 32904 RECEIVED 

Brevard County - HW APR 28 ,_ J 
AERC Recycling Solutions FLD984262782 
Proposed Long Form Consent Order Letter DEP Central Dist. 

Dear Ms. DePaola: 
'. 

A Hazardous waste compliance inspection was conducted at your facility on May 24, 2007. 
This inspection was conducted under the authority of Section 403.091, Florida Statutes, and 
Chapter 403, Part IV, Florida Statutes and is designed to determine the compliance status of 
your facility with 40 CFR 260-268, adopted in Florida Administrative Code Chapter 62-730, and 
40 CFR 279, adopted in Florida Administrative Code Chapter 62-710. 

Enclosed is a copy of a Long Form Consent Order (LFCO) for your review and signature. This 
includes information for performing an In-Kind Project as settlement. Please return the signed 
original within 10 days of receipt of this letter to Danielle Bentzen at the Central District office. 

If you have any questions, please contact Ms. Bentzen by telephone at (407) 893-3323 or by e­
mail at Danielle.Bentzen@dep.state.f1.us. 

Sincerely, 

~~~
 
Vivian F. Garfein 
Director, Central District 

VFG/db 

Enclosures: Long Form Consent Order 



BEFORE THE STATE OF FLORIDA
 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
 

STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT IN THE OFFICE OF THE 
OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION CENTRAL DISTRICT 

Complainant, 
OGC FILE NO. 07-2193 

vs. FLD984262782 

AERC Recycling Solutions 
RECEIVED 

Respondent. 
APR 28 2l.J_J

----------------_./ 

DE? Central Dist. 

CONSENT ORDER 

This Consent Order is entered into between the State of Florida Department of 

Environmental Protection ("Department") and AERC Recycling Solutions 

("Respondent") to reach settlement of certain matters at issue between the Department 

and Respondent. 

The Department finds and the Respondent admits the following: 

1. The Department is the administrative agency of the State of Florida having 

the power and duty to administer and enforce the provisions of the Florida Resource 

Recovery and Management Act, Sections 403.702, et seq., Florida Statutes ("Fla. 

Stat."), and the rules promulgated thereunder, Florida Administrative Code ("Fla. Admin. 

Code") Chapter 62-730. The Department has jurisdiction over the matters addressed in 

this Consent Order. 

2. Respondent is a "person" within the meaning of Sections 403.031 (5) and 

403.703(4), Fla. Stat. 



3. Respondent, AERC Recycling Solutions, is an active for profit business 

formed under the laws of the state of Florida on or about November 1993, which 

operates a permitted mercury recycling facility on a parcel of real property located at 

4317-J Fortune Place, West Melbourne, FL 32904 ("Facility"). Respondent is an 

"operator" as defined in Rule 62-730.020, Fla. Admin. Code. 

4. Respondent, AERC Recycling Solutions, currently leases the property 

located at 4317-~1 Fortune Place, West Melbourne, FL 32904 from Fortune Cookie Park 

Inc. 

5. Respondent's facility was inspected by the Department on May 24, 2007. 

Respondent's violations and operations are described in Exhibit I, Warning Letter, OWL­

HW-07-027, and RCRA Inspection Report, attached and incorporated herein. The 

Department finds that the following violations occurred: 

a) Regulation: 40 CFR 262.40 (a) - Recordkeeping 

Under 40 C.F.R. § 262.40(a), "[aj generator must keep a copy of each manifest 

signed in accordance with § 262.23(a) for three years or until he receives a signed copy 

from the designated facility which received the waste. This signed copy must be 

retained as a record for at least three years from the date the waste was accepted by 

the initial transporter." At the time of the May 24, 2007 inspection, AERC had failed to 

obtain and could not produce the original manifests for manifest numbers 452559, 

452565, 452547. 

b) Regulation: 40 CFR 264.15 - General Inspections 

Under 40 C.F.R. § 264.15, the AERC facility must comply with the inspection 

plan of its current permit, Part II - Operating Conditions 20 (f). At the time of the May 
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24, 2007 inspection, AERC had failed to document the daily container count log since 

February 15, 2007. 

c) Regulation: 40 CFR 264.16 (c)/265.16 (c) - Personnel Training 

Under 40 C.F.R. §§ 264.16(c) and 265.16(c), AERC facility personnel must take 

part in an annual review of their initial training. At the time of the May 24, 2007 

inspection, AERC had not provided training in hazardous waste management 

procedures for facility personnel as specified in Part II - Operating Conditions 2 of its 

current permit. 

d) Regulation: 40 CFR 264.35/265.35 - Container Aisle Space 

Under 40 C.F.R. § 264.35 and 265.35, AERC is required to maintain adequate 

aisle space between containers of hazardous waste to allow for inspection of the 

condition and labels of the individual containers. At the time of the May 24, 2007 

inspection, AERC was not providing proper aisle space for containers of hazardous 

waste. 

e) Regulation: 40 CFR 265.54 (d) - Amendment of Contingency Plan 

Under 40 C.F.R. § 265.54(d), AERC's contingency plan "must be reviewed and 

immediately amended whenever the list of emergency coordinators changes." At the 

time of the May 24,2007 inspection, AERC had failed to amend the contingency plan 

when Heath Clark, an emergency coordinator, was no longer with the company. 

f) Regulation: 40 CFR 268.50 (b) - Prohibition on Storage of 

Restricted Waste 

Under 40 C.F.R. § 268.50(b), "[a]n owner/operator of a treatment, storage or 

disposal facility may store [restricted} wastes for up to one year. .. " At the time of the 
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May 24, 2007 inspection, AERC, an owner/operator of a treatment, storage or disposal 

facility, had failed to process restricted wastes in the form of four drums of crushed 

bulbs, dated 3/9/06, 4/13/06 (2 drums), and 5/9/06, within the one year time frame as 

per Part I - General and Standard Conditions 32 of its current permit. 

Having reached a resolution of the matter, Respondent and Department mutually 

agree and it is, 

ORDERED: 

6. Within 30 days of the effective date of this Consent Order, Respondent 

shall pay the Department $26,147.00 in settlement of the matters addressed in this 

Consent Order. This amount includes $750.00 for costs and expenses incurred by the 

Department during the investigation of this matter and the preparation and tracking of 

this Consent Order. The civil penalty in this case includes 3 violations of $2,000.00 or 

more (Exhibit II). Payment shall be made by cashier's check or money order. The 

instrument shall be made payable to the "Department of Environmental Protection" and 

shall include thereon the notations "OGC File No. 07-2193" and "Ecosystem 

Management and Restoration Trust Fund." 

7. In lieu of making cash payment of $26,147.00 in civil penalties as set forth 

in paragraph 6, Respondent may elect to off-set $25,397.00 of this amount by 

implementing an in-kind penalty project, which must be approved by the Department. 

An in-kind project must be either an environmental enhancement, environmental 

restoration or a capital/facility improvement project. The Department may also consider 

the donation of environmentally sensitive land as an in-kind project. The value of the in­

kind penalty project shall be one and a half times the civil penalty off-set amount, which 
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in this case is the equivalent of at least $38,095.00. If Respondent chooses to 

implement an in-kind project, Respondent shall notify the Department of its election by 

certified postal or electronic mail within 15 days of the effective date of this Consent 

Order. Notwithstanding the election to implement an in-kind project, payment of the 

remaining $750.00 in costs must be paid within 30 days of the effective date of the 

Consent Order. 

8. If Respondent elects to implement an in-kind project as provided in 

paragraph 7, then Respondent shall comply with all of the requirements and time 

frames in Exhibit III, entitled In-Kind Projects. 

9. Effective immediately, Respondent shall comply with all Department rules 

regarding hazardous waste management. Respondent shall comply with all applicable 

sections in Fla. Admin. Code Chapter 62-730 and Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations 

("C.F.R.") Parts 260 through 266 and 268. All time periods shall run from the effective 

date of this Consent Order. 

1O. Respondent agrees to pay the Department stipulated penalties in the 

amount of $100.00 per day for each and every day Respondent fails to timely comply 

with any of the requirements of Paragraphs 6, 7, 8 of this Consent Order. A separate 

stipulated penalty shall be assessed for each violation of this Consent Order. Within 30 

days of written demand from the Department, Respondent shall make payment of the 

appropriate stipulated penalties to the "Department of Environmental Protection" by 

cashier's check or money order and shall include thereon the notations "OGC File No. 

07-2193" and "Ecosystem Management and Restoration Trust Fund." The Department 

may make demands for payment at any time after violations occur. Nothing in this 
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paragraph shall prevent the Department from filing suit to specifically enforce any of the 

terms of this Consent Order. Any penalties assessed under this paragraph shall be in 

addition to the settlement sum agreed to in Paragraph 6 of this Consent Order. If the 

Department is required to file a lawsuit to recover stipulated penalties under this 

Paragraph, the Department will not be foreclosed from seeking civil penalties for 

violations of this Consent Order in an amount greater than the stipulated penalties due 

under this Paragraph. 

11. If any event, including administrative or judicial challenges by third parties 

unrelated to Respondent, occurs which causes delay or the reasonable likelihood of 

delay in complying with the requirements of this Consent Order, Respondent shall have 

the burden of proving the delay was or will be caused by circumstances beyond the 

reasonable control of Respondent and could not have been or cannot be overcome by 

Respondent's due diligence. Economic circumstances shall not be considered 

circumstances beyond the control of Respondent, nor shall the failure of a contractor, 

subcontractor, materialman, or other agent (collectively referred to as "contractor") to 

whom responsibility for performance is delegated to meet contractually imposed 

deadlines be a cause beyond the control of Respondent, unless the cause of the 

contractor's late performance was also beyond the contractor's control. Upon 

occurrence of an event causing delay, or upon becoming aware of a potential for delay, 

Respondent shall notify the Department orally within 24 hours or by the next working 

day and shall, within seven calendar days of oral notification to the Department, notify 

the Department in writing of the anticipated length and cause of the delay, the measures 

taken or to be taken to prevent or minimize the delay and the timetable by which 
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Respondent intends to implement these measures. If the parties can agree that the 

delay or anticipated delay has been or will be caused by circumstances beyond the 

reasonable control of Respondent, the time for performance hereunder shall be 

extended for a period equal to the agreed delay resulting from such circumstances. 

Such agreement shall adopt all reasonable measures necessary to avoid or minimize 

delay. Failure of Respondent to comply with the notice requirements of this paragraph 

in a timely manner shall constitute a waiver of Respondent's right to request an 

extension of time for compliance with the requirements of this Consent Order. 

12. Respondent shall allow all authorized representatives of the Department 

access to the property and Facility at reasonable times for the purpose of determining 

compliance with the terms of this Consent Order and the rules and statutes of the 

Department. 

13. Entry of this Consent Order does not relieve Respondent of the need to 

comply with applicable federal, state or local laws, regulations or ordinances. 

14. The terms and conditions set forth in this Consent Order may be enforced 

in a court of competent jurisdiction pursuant to Sections 120.69 and 403.121, Fla. Stat. 

Failure to comply with the terms of this Consent Order shall constitute a violation of 

Section 403.727(1), Fla. Stat. 

15. Respondent is fully aware that a violation of the terms of this Consent 

Order may subject Respondent to jUdicial imposition of damages, civil penalties of up to 

$50,000 per day per violation, and criminal penalties. 
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16. Respondent shall publish the following notice in a newspaper of daily 

circulation in Brevard County, Florida. The notice shall be published one time only 

within 15 days after the effective date of the Consent Order. 

STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIROI\JIVIENTAL PROTECTION
 
NOTICE OF CONSENT ORDER
 

The Department of Environmental Protection gives notice of agency action of entering 
into a Consent Order with AERC Recycling Solutions pursuant to Section 120.57(4), Florida 
Statutes. The Consent Order addresses the hazardous waste violations identified at 4317-J 
Fortune Place, West Melbourne, FL 32904. 

The Consent Order is available for public inspection during normal business hours, 8:00 
a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, except legal holidays, at the Department of 
Environmental Protection, 3319 Maguire Boulevard, Suite 232, Orlando, Florida 32803. 

The Consent Order can also be accessed through the OCULUS electronic document 
management system at www.dep.state.fl.us.OnceattheDEPhomepage.c1ick on Programs, 
and then click on Waste Management, and then click on OCULUS. 

Login as netuser and password: netuser. Click the login button. Under Catalog select 
Hazardous Waste and under Profile select Enforcement_Legal. Enter FLD984262782 in the 
Facility ID field & the tab button. Click the Search button. 

Persons whose substantialC'interests are affected by this Consent Order have a right to 
petition for an administrative hearing on the Consent Order. The petition must contain the 
information set forth below and must be filed (received) in the Department's Office of General 
Counsel, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, MS-35 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000, within 21 
days of receipt of this notice. A copy of the petition must also be mailed at the time of filing to 
the District Office named above at the address indicated. Failure to file a petition within the 21 
days constitutes a waiver of any right such person has to an administrative hearing pursuant to 
Sections 120.569 and 120.57, Florida Statutes. 

The petition shall contain the following information: (a) The name, address, and 
telephone number of each petitioner; the name, address, and telephone number of the 
petitioner's representative, if any, which shall be the address for service purposes; the 
Department's identification number for the Consent Order and the county in which the subject 
matter or activity is located; (b) A statement of how and when each petitioner received notice of 
the Consent Order; (c) A statement of how each petitioner's substantial interests are affected by 
the Consent Order; (d) A statement of the material facts disputed by petitioner, if any; (e) A 
statement of the facts which petitioner contends warrant reversal or modification of the Consent 
Order; (f) A statement of which rules or statutes petitioner contends require reversal or 
modification of the Consent Order; (g) A statement of the relief sought by petitioner, stating 
precisely the action petitioner wants the Department to take with respect to the Consent Order. 

If a petition is filed, the administrative hearing process is designed to formulate agency 
action. Accordingly, the Department's final action may be different from the position taken by it 
in this Notice. Persons whose substantial interests will be affected by any decision of the 
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Department with regard to the subject Consent Order have the right to petition to become a 
party to the proceeding. The petition must conform to the requirements specified above and be 
filed (received) within 21 days of receipt of this notice in the Office of General Counsel at the 
above address of the Department. Failure to petition within the allowed time frame constitutes a 
waiver of any right such person has to request a hearing under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, 
Florida Statutes, and to participate as a party to this proceeding. Any subsequent intervention 
will only be at the approval of the presiding officer upon motion filed pursuant to Rule 28­
106.205, Florida Administrative Code. 

A person whose substantial interests are affected by the Consent Order may file a timely 
petition for an administrative hearing under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, Florida Statutes, or 
may choose to pursue mediation as an alternative remedy under Section 120.573, Florida 
Statutes before the deadline for filing a petition. Choosing mediation will not adversely affect 
the right to a hearing if mediation does not result in a settlement. The procedures for pursuing 
mediation are set forth below. 

Mediation may only take place if the Department and all the parties to the proceeding 
agree that mediation is appropriate. A person may pursue mediation by reaching a mediation 
agreement with all parties to the proceeding (which include the Respondent. the Department, 
and any person who has filed a timely and sufficient petition for a hearing) and by showing how 
the substantial interests of each mediating party are affected by the Consent Order. The 
agreement must be filed in (received by) the Office of General Counsel of the Department at 
3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Mail Station 35, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000, within 10 
days after the deadline as set forth above for the filing of a petition. 

The agreement to mediate must include the following: (a) The names, addresses, and 
telephone numbers of any persons who may attend the mediation; (b) The name, address, and 
telephone number of the mediator selected by the parties, or a provision for selecting a mediator 
within a specified time; (c) The agreed allocation of the costs and fees associated with the 
mediation; (d) The agreement of the parties on the confidentiality of discussions and documents 
introduced during mediation; (e) The date, time, and place of the first mediation session, or a 
deadline for holding the first session, if no mediator has yet been chosen; (f) The name of each 
party's representative who shall have authority to settle or recommend settlement; (g) Either an 
explanation of how the substantial interests of each mediating party will be affected by the 
action or proposed action addressed in this notice of intent or a statement clearly identifying the 
petition for hearing that each party has already filed, and incorporating it by reference; and (h) 
The signatures of all parties or their authorized representatives. 

As provided in Section 120.573, Florida Statutes, the timely agreement of all parties to 
mediate will toll the time limitations imposed by Sections 120.569 and 120.57, Florida Statutes, 
for requesting and holding an administrative hearing. Unless otherwise agreed by the parties, 
the mediation must be concluded within 60 days of the execution of the agreement. If mediation 
results in settlement of the administrative dispute, the Department must enter a final order 
incorporating the agreement of the parties. Persons whose substantial interests will be affected 
by such a modified final decision of the Department have a right to petition for a hearing only in 
accordance with the requirements for such petitions set forth above, and must therefore file their 
petitions within 21 days of receipt of this notice. If mediation terminates without settlement of 
the dispute, the Department shall notify all parties in writing that the administrative hearing 
processes under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, Florida Statutes, remain available for disposition 
of the dispute, and the notice will specify the deadlines that then will apply for challenging the 
agency action and electing remedies under those two statutes. 
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17. The Department hereby expressly reseNes the right to initiate appropriate 

legal action to prevent or prohibit any violations of applicable statutes, or the rules 

promulgated thereunder, that are not specifically addressed by the terms of this 

Consent Order, including but not limited to undisclosed releases, contamination, or 

polluting conditions. 

18. The Department, for and in consideration of the complete and timely 

performance by Respondent of the obligations agreed to in this Consent Order, hereby 

waives its right to seek judicial imposition of damages or civil penalties for alleged 

violations outlined in this Consent Order; provided, however, that should the 

Department conclude that clean up of the contaminated area to site rehabilitation levels 

is not feasible; or should Respondent not completely implement the remedial or 

corrective action plan (however denominated) as approved by the Department; the 

Department expressly reserves its right to seek restitution from Respondent for 

environmental damages. Within 20 days of receipt of Department's written notification 

of its intent to seek said restitution, Respondent may pay the amount of the damages or 

may, if it so chooses, initiate negotiations with the Department regarding the monetary 

terms of restitution to the state. Respondent is aware that should a negotiated sum or 

other compensation or environmental damages not be agreed to by the Department and 

Respondent within 20 days of receipt of Department written notification of its intent to 

seek restitution, the Department may institute appropriate action, either administrative 

through a Notice of Violation, or judicial, in a court of competent jurisdiction through a 
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civil complaint, to recover Department assessed environmental damages as provided by 

law. 

19. Respondent acknowledges and waives its right to an administrative 

hearing pursuant to Sections 120.569 and 120.57, Fla. Stat., on the terms of this 

Consent Order. Respondent acknowledges its right to appeal the terms of this Consent 

Order pursuant to Section 120.68, Fla. Stat., and waives that right upon signing this 

Consent Order. 

20. No modifications of the terms of this Consent Order shall be effective until 

reduced to writing and executed by both Respondent and the Department. 

21. All submittals and payments required by this Consent Order to be 

submitted to the Department shall be sent to: 

Waste Program Administrator 
Florida Department of Environmental Protection 
3319 Maguire Boulevard, Suite 232 
Orlando, Florida 32803 

22. In the event of a sale or conveyance of the Facility or of the real property 

upon which the Facility is located, if all of the requirements of this Consent Order have 

not been fully satisfied, Respondent shall, at least 30 days prior to the sale or 

conveyance of the property or Facility: (1) notify the Department of such sale or 

conveyance, (2) provide the name and address of the purchaser, or operator, or 

person(s) in control of the Facility, and (3) prOVide a copy of this Consent Order with all 

attachments to the new owner. The sale or conveyance of the Facility, or the real 

property upon which the Facility is located shall not relieve the Respondent of the 

obligations imposed in this Consent Order. 
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23. This Consent Order is a settlement of the Department's civil and 

administrative authority arising under Florida law to resolve the matters addressed 

herein. This Consent Order is not a settlement of any criminal liabilities which may arise 

under Florida law, nor is it a settlement of any violation which may be prosecuted 

criminally or civilly under federal law. 

24. This Consent Order is a final order of the Department pursuant to Section 

120.52(7), Fla. Stat., and it is final and effective on the date filed with the Clerk of the 

Department unless a Petition for Administrative Hearing is filed in accordance with 

Chapter 120, Fla. Stat. Upon the timely filing of a petition, this Consent Order will not 

be effective until further order of the Department. 
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~NT 
4·95·00 
DATE NME~~ 

TITLE ~~\-.\
 
AERC Recycling olutions ~
 

DONE AND ORDERED this~2~~~_y of!-..d.:;;t:J~r;",L' 2008, i L2ltf:.~ 

Florida. 

STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT 
OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

~~. 
Director, Central District 

Filed, on this date, pursuant to Section 120.52, Fla. Stat., with the designated 
Departme~t Clerk, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged. 

Clerk Date 

Exhibits: 
I. Warning Letter, OWL-HW-07-027, and RCRA Inspection Report 
II. Revised Penalty Computation Worksheet, December 4, 2007 
III. In-Kind Penalty Projects 

cc: 
Debby Valin, FDEP P2 Coordinator 
Lea Crandall, Agency Clerk 
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